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VISION

While Maintaining our "Stile" Brand
as Market Leader, We Continue to
Delight our Customers by also
Bringing in International Brands in
the Field of Building Materials, By
Offering the Best Quality and

Innovative Products at Competitive
Prices, Taking into Account the
Stakeholders' Interest.

MISSION

Our Mission is to Maintain our Position as the
Leader in the tile Industry in Pakistan and for this
Purpase we will Continue to Focus on:

* We are Committed to Quality Products and will
Provide our Customers with Innovative Sizes,
Designs and Color Scheme that they will be
Delighted to have and Shall Provide them with
Excellent Services to Earn their Loyalty.

*  We Shall Treat our Employees Fairly and shall
Provide Conducive Working Environment for
them to Learn and to Grow with the Company.

* The Company shall Earn Adequate Profits for
its Progress and Growth and for Providing
Reasonable Retum to its Shareholders.

Annual Repart 2022 08
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

MOTICE is hereby given that the 44th Annual General Meeting of SHABEIR TILES AND CERAMICS
LIMITED will be held on Thursday, October 20, 2022 at 1:00 p.m. at Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP), Near Three Swords, Clifton, Karachi 1o fransact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2022, together with the Chairman's Review Report, Report of the Direclors
and Auditors thereon.

2. To consider and approve final cash dividend of Rs. 0.75 per share (@ 15%)) for the year ended June
30, 2022 as recommended by the Board of Direclors.

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2023. The presant
auditors — Mfs. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, refire and being eligible have offered
themselves for re-appointment.

4. To consider any other business of the Company with the permission of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board

wrt

OVAIS JAMANI
Karachi: September 28_ 2022 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 14, 2022 to October 20,
2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting. Transfers requests received
by CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, COC House, 99-B, Block ‘B, SM.CHS., Main
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, Telephone # 111111500, email: cdcsrn@cdcsrsl.com at the close
of business on Oclober 13, 2022 will be treated in ime for the purpose to attend the Annual General
Meeting.

2. Proxy:

A member entitied to attend and vote at this General Meeting may appoint a Proxy to attend, speak
and vaote in his place at the Meeting. Instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attormey or
other authority under which it is signed or a notary cenified copy of the power or authority must be

deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

COC Account Holders will have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular
No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP).
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A.  For Attending the Meeting:

(i) In case of indrviduals, the account holder or sub-account holder and'or the person whose
secunties are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Reguiations, shall authenticate histher identity by showing his/her onginal Computenzed
Mational |dentity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

(i) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attormey with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earier) at the time of
the meefing.

B.  For Appointing Proxies:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
secunties are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement

()  The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

(i) Motanzed copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
fumished with the prosxy form.

(v)  The proxy shall produce histher onginal CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

(v]  Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attomey with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

3. Online Participation in AGM:

To facilitate and ensure the safety and health of the shareholders the company will also be providing
the online platform [ facility to participate in the AGM in the shape of zoom.

The shareholders will be able to login and parbcipate in the AGM proceedings through their
smartphones or computer devices after completing all the formalities required for the verification and
identification of the shareholders.

In thes regard, sharehaolders are required to update their valid e-mail addresses with the Share
Registrar, latest by October 14, 2022, A detailed procedure shall be communicated through e-mail
directly to the shareholders who have provided their valid e-mail IDs and same shall be placad at the
company s website www stile.com._pk in investor relation section.

The shareholders who have already updated their valid email addresses with the company or ils
Share Registrar and are interested to attend AGM may send their folio number at
corporate@stile.com pk for their appointed proxy’s verification. Such information should be sent from
duly registered valid e-mail address for the registrabon purposes latest by the Oclober 14, 2022




13 Shabber Tiles and Ceramics Limited

4.

10.

Change of Address:

The Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their address, if any, to the Company's
Share Registrar.

Submission of copies of valid CNIC not provided earlier:

Individual Shareholders are once again reminded to submit a copy of their valid CNIC, if not provided
earlier to the Company’s Share Registrar.

Submission of Information to Share Registrar:

According to Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19 of the Companies (Genearal
Provisions and Forms) Requiations, 2018, all physical shareholders are advised o provide their
mandatory information such as CNIC number, address, emaill address, contact mobile / telephone
numbers, occupation, etc. to CDC Share Registrar Services Limited immediately to avoid any non
compliance of law or any inconvenience in future.

Availability of the Audited Financial Statements on Company's Website:

The audited accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 have been placed on the
Company's website at www.stile com.pk

Transmission of Annual Financial Statements Through Email:

In pursuance of the directions given by SECP vide SRO 787(1)2014 dated: September 8, 2014, those
shareholders who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements in future through email instead of
receiving the same by Fost are advised to give their formal consent along with their valid email address
on a standard request form which is available at the Company's website i.e. www.stile.com.pk and send
the said form duly filed in and signed along with copy of hisherits CNIC/Passport or other such
information in the case of a body corporate to the Company's share registrar. The Company’s Annual
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 is also being circulated to the shareholders
through CD 7 DVD in compliance of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017,

Submission Of CNIC/NTN Details (Mandatory Requirement):

As per Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRC B83(1)2011 and SRO
831(1y2012, dividend counters in electric form should bear the CNIC number of the authorized person or
registered member, except in case of minor (5) and corporate members. Accordingly, Members who have
not yel submitted photocopy of their valid computerized MNational Identity Card (CNIC) to the Company |
Share Registrar, are once again reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to Company” Share
Registrar. In case of non-receipt of the copy of valid CNIC, the Company would be constrained under the
law to withhold dividend of such shareholders.

Payment Of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory Requirement):

In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies { Distribution
of Dividend) ions, 2017, it i= mandalory for a listed company to pay cash dividend to its
shareholder ONLY through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the enfitied
shareholder. Nofice In this regard has already been published by the Company in the newspapers,
however, shareholders are once again requested to fill in "Electronic Credit Mandate Form™ as reproduced
below and send the duly signed Electronic Mandate Form along with a copy of valid CNIC/NTN to their
respective COC participant / COC Investor account services, (In case of shareholding in Eook Entry Form)
or to the Company’s Share Registrar i.e. M/s, CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (CDCSRSL), CDC
House, 98-8, Block- ‘B, SM.C.H.S, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 (in case of shareholding in
Physical Form):
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Shareholder’s details:
Name of the Shareholder(s)
Folio No. / CDS Account No.
CNIC No. {Copy attached)
 Mobile / Landline No.

Shareholder’s Bank details:

Title of Bank Account

Intemnational Bank Account Number (IBAN)
|_Bank's Name

Branch's Name and Address

In case of non-provision of above information the Company will have o withhold the cash dividend
according to section 243{3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

1.

12.

Deposit of Physical Shares In CDC Account:

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be required to replace
its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by
the Commission, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of this Act, i.e., May
30, 2017,

The Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub - account with any
of the brokers or Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form.

Unclaimed / Unpaid Shares and Dividends

In compliance of Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, once the company has completed stipulated
formalities, any unclaimed dividend and /or shares that have remained outstanding for a pariod of threa
years from the date of becoming due and payable or more shall be credited to the Federal Govemment
(in case of dividend) or delvered 1o the SECP (in case of physical shares). Shareholders who by any
reason could not collect and remain their unclaimed dividend/shares are advised to contact our Shares
Registrar of the Company, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (CDCSRSL), CDC House, 59-B,
Block ‘B', SM.C. H.5., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-T4400 to collectinquire about their unclaimed
dividend or shares, if any.

13. Status of Active Taxpayers List (ATL)

All the shareholders are advised fo check their status on Active Taxpayer List (ATL) available on FER
Website and if required take necessary actions for the inclusion of their name in ATL. In case a person’s
name doas not appear in the ATL, the applicable tax rate will be increased by hundred percent.

In case of join account, please intimate proportion of shareholding of each account holder along with
their individual status on the ATL.

Withholding Tax exemnption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of the valid fax
exemplion cerbficate is made available to CDC Share Registrar Services Limited by first day of Book
Closure.

14. Postal Ballot

Members may exercise their right to vote by means of postal ballet i.e. by post or through electronic
mode subject to the requirements of section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017 and applicable
clauses of Companies (Poslal Ballot) Regulations, 2018,
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT

Dear Shareholders,
| have great pleasure in presenting the Chairman's review report for the year ended June 30, 2022
MACRDO ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The current fiscal year under res

growth, This was later oversha ; :
measures to ' down the economy. During the later part of fiscal year due to political uncertainty
and these twin deficits, the economy had to undergo severe comecton, making it more difficult to
sustain the growth outlook

The cumrent account and trade deficits and significant increases in energy and edible oil bills, and the
pass-through impact of increase in global commodity prices also created severe inflationary and
balance of payment pressures and the emment has been forced to bghten monetary policy
further curtall demand and putting reservations over imports. This has further curtailed the rate o

for.
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year under review, the Company continued to implement its core strategy of supplying
quality products and maintaining financial prudence. The company continues its journey fo
fransform itself info a lfestyle brand and deliver a unique expenence to its customers. By
establishing Stile Emporiums & Design Studios nationwide, the management is working towards
offering our customers, a unique expenance of lifestyle products.

The Company managed to achieve satisfactory financial results in a very challenging scenano
which included un-precedented gas shortages, upsurge in ene nces on the back of continuous
volatility in international coal pric
and the deprecaton of the nupee

- 5 fron second quarter of FY-22. This also
resulted in a massive increase in the input costs due to a shift to expensive alternate fuels to keep
the plant running. However, the team continued to keep focus on producing best in class quality and
an efficient product mix despite the unavoidable and inescapable disruptions.

PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

Your Company registered a revenue of Ks, 11,899 million for the year which was higher by 20%
compared to prévious year mainly due to an improved product mix. However, gross margins
reduced to 25% as compared to 31% of last year because of extreme pressures on Input costs due
ta the reasons mentioned aboyve



17 Shabbar Tiles and Ceramics Limded ———— e

LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT

To manage its working capital in the most efficent manner, the Company has a proactive treasury
management system in place. Cash generation from sales, effective controls on credit and secunng
advance payments have helped in managing its liquidity position. The Company invests any surplus
funds at the competitive rates a refum.

COMMERCIAL STRATEGY

“STILE", through its company operated emponums has positioned itself as a well-established brand
offenng high-quality ceramic and porcelain tiles for small and large-scale projects. Our emporniums
offer a unique expenence to customers with exclusive products, designing facility and after sales
services. We have a vision to take our Stile brand forward for providing good designs, and quality
craftsmanship. Engagement with the end consumers is the key for enhancing brand image and
constant efforts are being made o maintain Stile as a premium brand.

HUMAN CAPITAL

The Company strongly believes in valuing its people, and recognizes them as its most valuable
assels. People development has always been our prionty, and we understand that satisfied and
motivated employees personify the Company's values, ensuring continued excellence which is the
foundation for a sustainable business.

The Company has also been leading change towards building a more diverse, equitable, and
inclusive culture, firmly focused on diversity empowerment.

The COVID-19 pandemic has transformed the way people work. The team bravely faced unigue
challenges, mainly arising from the uncartainty brought about as a result of COVID-19. With resolve
the Company not only managed safe and sustainable plant operations under strict control measures
but also managed its front end operations at emporiums in the most efficient ways by establishing
stringent set of COVID-19 protocols on the guidelines of Govemment issued from time to time and
available best practice procedures.

BOARD EVALUATION

STCL complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Govemnance) Regulations, 2019 with respect to the composition,
procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its commitiees.

BUSINESS RISKS AND CHALLENGES

The constructon industry of Pakistan has experienced uninterupted growth in recent years
pnmanly due to strong investment in nfrastructure development. This industry not only helps in
improving the lifestyle of a country by providing better infrastructure and other facilites but also plays
a key responsibility in boosting country’'s GDP. In addition the withdrawal of incentives to this sector
will have a negative impact on the company’s business following are the risks and challenges may
affect the performance of the tiles industry and the Company:

Annual Repor 2022 18

*  Fluctuation / interruption in gas supply due to curtailment, gas reserve depletion

*  Revision in gas allocation policy and increased gas tanff exering pressures on input cost

*  Devaluation of rupee.

»  Freight cost upsurge due to supply chain disruption, diesel prices

=  MNew local players entering the market and the absence of a level playing field for established
local industnes

« |rrational tax burden on compliant companies

With domestic gas reserves in decline, Pakistan’s vulnerability to surges in giobal fuel / energy
prices s conlinuously growing. As regards altermate sources of energy. The team has worked
tirelessly to keep the plant up and running by using LPG, coal, solar and diesel.

It has been highlighted to authorties’ multiple times that throwgh Finance Act 2019, section 108B,
requiring the manufacturer of items listed under Third Schedule of the Sales Tax Act 1990 to bear
the dealer's margin and pay tax, is completely irational. The tiles manufacturers established in
Special Economic Zones are exempt from this clause, and not providing a level playing field to
already established manufactunng units impacts their operations negativity.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Austerity measures are being taken by the govemment in order to reduce fiscal and current account
deficits within manageable limits. This is expected to result in curtailment of GDP growth and
construction activity. Political instability and The Russia-Ukraine conflict may also continue to exert
pressure on foreign exchange reserves. This will also impact purchasing power and market
demand.

Energy remains a key concem, with depleting indigenous natural gas deposits jeopardizing the
sustainability of the industrial sector. A strong Governmental resolve o address this risk is now more
criical than ever and the government should look to formulate a policy to exploit shale gas and oil
resarves in the country.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

| would like o thank my fellow board members for therr active coniributions in this year which
enabled the Company in achieving its objectives while continuing to create long term value for the
shareholders. The board members have been instrumental in stewarding the Company through
their guidance to the team during a year of significant turbulence.

Equally, we remain extremely grateful o all employees and workers who have worked diligently to
help our business sustained and moving forward.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all the shareholders for thewr
continued trust and confidence in the Company despite the difficult times.

S

Rafig M. Habib
Chairman




19 Shabber Tiles and Ceramics Limied

I

d Ll iujvidﬁinm;lqur_._u S rumy sl S u"ﬁ"diif'%q,ﬁm,ﬂ
Al gt Jea i e 2 L S e S L AL -G WL LSRR Ju )
ST

b L Ttk ke b L U BBt 0 B AL 1
-LJHJJE‘EEJL;L yf.ul: [+ ﬁﬁlu ﬁ!u’“‘?‘ﬁuﬂ;ﬁ!u&w&._;lﬂ;ﬁfﬁ_; i L;L,):.F T

&
I
L7

D —————————————————— ] Annual Repodt 2022 20

;-frg.uh:-!,ﬁﬁ.r!tuf

2 S b G4 S S S e (nrai R Urs Jof e (1A e
S LIt bond GOPYB L e soalf i VS LSRR B 3 2 eSS P
&ﬂfﬁlﬁlbﬁ‘gfﬂci.ﬂg;alﬁl&ﬁru Fﬁ:d:r.:. 2 ahda e st s o ;,.!l.rﬁrl.ai:.rr
Wi iEaul .rl.;m!.:rj,ﬁ.;:ﬁlrr

ekl e R B

SoguFicba gt ol sSSP

e

SR IS e 0 S rhsa i s b

R ARLY s Wl GuritFRamrala Tt L oz el

2065 bgUrklarl

FHIaDLSoibug-ur e o SnfSur il e o 26igeent LT
e Sl g §S o S1PG e lite St B L0 gl T

r T L T x X

L Pe JE N 1088 55 LIl 20190 K r.,fl:iu.*;ﬁ.-;_i_f Wby sl Ui S s 7
,-"'!1'; .rr"g,P{r.;’.' r»*'_.;'l.!'u’g:ub_.-r.:j s il KA 5{; I_;"’JJJ.E# 5;."':. 1990 J'ﬁkj%ﬁnfi .E.u“-'l':rE
Jr‘u;.l_"ﬁ.ﬂ:lﬁl:ﬂf;% J:1+ LJ’LJ'L kSl fﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁu:;&hﬂfr‘?ﬁ LJMEL L,F.frl.'-.:.:...-*ﬂ-l:'
e mzrat i akl e SR i L

S

Ji, Pt GOP St e el i arfd L2 £t de AL 2 A dUN
anl .’..::TU{.; J= :.QJ;I:JJJ’?:J{EEL,JJ?JJ L}.E..r_.s}tfci el &Jixxjigfffq!db;.dﬁk- -L;IJA...: r(j_f.fc-f
—£_.+-:~.,.Ff.-.-l?;-.-l*d'd-ﬂk

b LK erfe S St B e 7658 A bzl S G Mok EESG L0007
FLLEL Lnbie e 2638 En L Sierbre Sebea (GO LML P
Sl




21 Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limded

dllﬂ"ld;l_.ui‘:uirli'ifi_ L~

LnMlea 2y jocsrry B LA L2 el =t LJ{' WU LBt PPN ol
L#JE- Ldr"uﬂ:gL‘{UFIL?L‘-JuJi;J#!Uﬁ!‘J#ML |_,l!!;¥i.'r|i_ﬁ‘1"'ﬂ]¢:?)11'::“: LJI'};;'L;!J—'!
e S A Bl

Jeriy

Sl L u"g",.;.;_ el o e Lok ke ey AT T8 5L ;{II;_I-E—L#-
=P O o s 23y f sl I Sz b= UL s e same b/ F e g o
Eon e g bl g L See Fra b Ll br St i L e dn e
S

AJU

e §.G Fne 28 37Ul -e Feu A S i e o L LA e &
—;uumﬂdﬂg»ﬁ’k;ﬁ A e P B S et sk P g2l

e bl PP SIS S e Gim i S BB SE WP L Fa p G

L L L coviD-19 2 b L KU U Bnlrd £-Y U linl ¥ ol bl covip-19
M s 2 L BB F AL e - e oS e EF b T
COVID-1925L Ul Jubs Aol Uil as /e B A0 o 2t TN TNy F
S L L eSS e St STMLL

|_J'.‘.'l.. ;;id!

sl S s A8 ST K Pl M3 (o e S KSTH ) 22017 1 2 STCL
< l:JLhwl_, Juﬁﬁrﬁ.;_}"" = !

Ly nFle Sk A

o0 ]! V!

Ut e e L S B2 04T eiug e Sl

riﬂﬂ}"b

L LWt Qa2 i o ot & ni-doer GOPE 2 222 Se T 2 6 TE JU Qe 1
UnlBussa e EF L TE M- J-dnduer st et L E LS L unts
b Sl L e Pl bl e tre

LyRE L n el Pl iUe L urd S EL L St A3 0 (iU,
Sndfirtbe Siytfaiy st R e NPy Y i Ei T e et 1Lty
—&gﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬂpﬁ;;ﬁw L;Jﬁdihﬁfhﬁgiﬁ-ﬁuia L Tiaas!

rﬂ_rlj.-’,ur

PV e P s a1 140 A B L S e S L JY L F el JirFleg
Juthe ZJFG3M s O Sl 2 ALl A it bl d&;;ﬂ_'. Tz -
- EMFF{LJ’U%L‘L@I:‘:F& .:-hf#d"‘;;}.f/b}b.}i L-:=.-1.E'-’I-+Jfr‘?i,j.:=ﬂ' LAy o

VP S mededbon Ant P IS aSurdd e i B A S AR Dt
KL LI QN FEEF o LS Bt s I Gt o ol
el KUl & b S6TE Shdnf 2021221 ),_m,r.?_.;ur:' A bt sam(5
JFEaty S et it 2L UF I R E L L 1t Pyl N EL L £ e D Loy
—ﬁi{qﬁ;#fﬁig&ﬁ%h&fﬁ@@&-&bﬁﬁ L. J;r sk U

LKL K

el bt l A urntidn s bl 207 T 11,899 230 30 &’[{T Tt Lo
& 3t L P I i P B 2 SR 2s S B K oSl

Annual Report 2022 22




EMPORIUM & DESIGN STUDIO
. BAHAWALPUH




25 Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limsed

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report together with the Annual Report of
the Company along with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT.

The Chairman's review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the nature of business,
perfformance of the Company, explanation of significant deviations from last year and future

prospects.
BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT:

Pakistan confinues to face number of economic challenges including but not limited to continued
reliance on external funding from international financial instituions and other friendly countnes,
persistent fiscal deficits and rising inflation due fo a rapidly devaluing cumency, impeding its
economic growth. The economy also, has remained the prey of political unrest. Despite its vast
economic resources, the country has faced severe economic stagnation due to the menace of
political instability.

The construchon industry has always been of economic and social significance to the country being
a prime source of employment generation offering job opportunities to milions of unskilled,
semi-skilled and skilled work force. However, following a meteonc nse in the prces of construction
malterials usad to form grey structures, the projects developments have resulted in a slow-down in
construction activities.

Dunng the period under review, despite significant challenges at the backend operations, your
Company managed to achieve an adeguate bottom line in the most difficult and unprecedented
condiions. The plant being designed 1o operate on natural gas, was forced to shift to alternate
energy sources (LPG, coal and diesel) which not only were costly but also had operational issues o
tackle with. The team worked day and night to come up with the most effective manufacturing cost
in the given scanario while managing the quality of the product efficiently.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

A comparson of the operating results of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2022
against the same period last year is shown hereunder:

R=._in ‘000

Turmover — net 11,898,966 9,904 498 |
_Gross profit 2994999 | 3060227 |
_ Eamings before interest, taxes and depreciation (EBITDA) | 1,812,243 | 2267720 |
Depreciation 689,614 710534 |
Finance cost 115,840 107,444 |
Frofit before taxation . 1,006,789 | 1449742 |
Profi after taxation 47322 | G488
Eamings per share (Rs.) 2.08 3.86

Sales:

The topline of the Company showed a tremendous growth by 18% partly due to the continuous
efforts to shift to high margin products and to counter against the increase in production costs.

Production:

The second quarter of the fiscal year posed intense challenges for sustained manufacturing
operations, where the plant activities were shifted to expensive liquified petroleum gas (LPG) with
constant surges and spikes in natural gas pressures affecting the final output, while the power
requirement, dependent on cogeneration fadlity (being single source), was shifted to diesel gensets.
This resulted in substantial cost increases thereby margins were shrunk, Despite the challanges,
production activiies were planned effectively and adjusted to cater to the customer preferences.

Profitability:

Gross profit for the year under review decreased from Rs. 3,060 million to Rs. 2,995 million due to
reduced margins (reasons mentioned above). Selling and distnbution expenses increased by Rs.
207 million, mainly on account of outward freight costs. Adminisirative expenses increased by Rs.
47 million on the back of inflationary impacts. Due to better liquidity position, income from short term
investments increased by Rs. 42 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FINANCIAL POSITION:

The Company primarly manages ils capital expenditure requirements and shor-term working
capital requirements from its intemally generated cash-flows; however, it takes advantage of any
short-term financing available at subsidized rates as part of any scheme announced by the
Government or cenfral bank. Healthy cash flows and prudent liquidity management aids the
Company to maintain its strong liquidity position. The Company believes that it is maintaining an
optimal capital structure,

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER:

Your company approximately contnbuted Rs. 2828 milion (2021: Rs. 2 587 million) info the
Government Treasury on account of income taxes, sales tax, cusiom duties and other govemment
levies.

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company beleves in supporting the community and has a policy to contribute at least 1% of its
profit before tax. Over the years our Company has contnbuted significantly towards the welfare of
the society through various social activities. Under the CSR policy, the Company mainly emphasis
on healthcare, education and society.

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT:

The Company always endeavors to build a safe and secure work environment for associates, Under
the fundamental safety guidelines, the Company seeks to realize a work environment that brings the
joy to the people of working with a frue sense of safety & secunty. The Health & Safety Division has
been established by the Company for preventing industnial accidents and their recurence, as well
as ensuring the health of associales.
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Though the pandemic recedes towards end of the year, the social distancing and basic precautions
for Covid-19 safety were observed throughout the year. All workstations & lunch tables were
protected.

We are proud to state that all the employees, workers and contractors are fully vaccnated against
COVID-19.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The company adheres to maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other imegulanties; selection and application of approprate accounting policies; making
judgments and estmates that are reasonable and prudent design, implementaton and
maintenance of adequate internal financal controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and prasantation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or ermor

The Board has cutsourced internal audit function who are suitably qualified and expenenced for the
purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. The Board has also
appointed Head of Internal Audit who is a qualified person reporting functionally fo the Audit
Commitiee.

AUDITORS:

The present auditors M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the
retiing auditors for the year ending 30 June 2023, for approval of the shareholders in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company Management is fully cognizant of its responsibility as recognized by the Companies
Act, 2017 provisions and Code of Corporate Governance issued by the Securibes and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The following comments are acknowledgement of Board’s
commitment to high standards of Corporate Govemnance and continuous improvement:

1) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state
of affairs, the result of its operations, cash fiows and changes in equity;

2) Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company;

3) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

4) Intermational Finandal Reporting Standards (IFRS). as applicable in Pakistan, have been
foliowed in preparation of these financial statements;

2] The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The process of monitoring internal controls will continue with the objective to further
strengthen the controls and improve the system;

6) There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a growing concem;

7)  Asummary of key operating and financial data of the Company of the last six years is annexed
in the report on page No. 37.

8) There has been no matenal departure from the best practices of Corporate Govemnance, as
detailed in the Regulations of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

89y The Company operates a contnbutory provident fund scheme for all permanent employees.
The value of Provident Fund Investments as per the unaudited accounts of STCL Provident
Fund Trust for the year ended June 30, 2022 was Rs. 291 487 milion (2021: Rs. 244 716
millian);

10) There are no outstanding statutory payments due on account of taxes, levies and charges
except as those disclosed in these financial statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ITS COMMITTEES:
Election of Directors

On Apnl 269, 2022, election of directors took place wherain all the retiring directors were re-slected.
The Board acknowledges the valuable contributions made by all the Directors.

The Board:

The Board comprses of two independent Direclors (including one female director), four
non-executive Directors and one executive Director.

During the year, five meetings of Board of Directors (BOD) were held. All the meetings wera held in
Pakistan. The attendance and the composition of the Board of Direclors are as follows:

Name of Director Status MNo. of meetings attended
|_Mr. Rafiq M. Habib __Chaimman 3
Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery Executive Director & CEQ 5
' Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawasji Independent Director 5
| Mr. Abdul Hai M. Bhaimia Non-Executive Director 5
' Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan Independent Direclor 2
. Mr. Muhammad Salman Bumey Non-Executive Director 9
Mr. Imran Ali Habib Mon-Executive Director 5

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Board meetings.
Board Audit Committee:

The Board Audt Commitiee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, primanly in
revienwing and reporting financial and non-financial information to share-holders, systems of intemal
control and nsk management and the audit process. It has the autonomy to call for information from
management and to consult directly with the extemal auditors or advisors as considered
appropriate. The Chief Financial Cfficer regularly attends the Board Audit Committee meetings by
invitation to present the accounts. After each meeting, the Chairman of the Committee repors to the
Board. The Committee comprises of two non-executive director and two independent directors
(including one female director) and the Chairman of the committee is an independent director.

During the year, four meetings of Board Audit Committee were held. The attendance and the
composition of the committee is as follows:
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Name of Director Status Mo. of meetings attended
Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawas|i Independent Lirector 4
|_Mr. Abdul Hai M. Bhaimia Non-Executive Director | 4 |
| Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan Independent Director | -
Mr. Imran Ali Habib
(w.e.f. May 6, 2022) Non-Executive Director -

Human Resource And Remuneration Committee:

The Committee meels to review and recommend all elements of the compensation, organization
and employee development policies relating to the senior executives’ remunearation. The CED of the
Company and the Head of HR. of the Company attended the Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee meeting. The Committee met twice durng 2021-22. The attendance and composition of
the Committee is as follows:

MName of Director No. of meetings attended
| Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawas|i Independent Director 2
| Mr. Salman Bumey Mon-Executive Director | 2
| Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery Executive Director I 2
Mrs. Farhana Mowjea Khan
(w.ef. from May 6, 2022) Independant Director 1
DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors following the policy of fair distribution of profits amongst the shareholders,
strengthening the balance sheet and future capital needs, have recommended a dividend of Rs.
0.75/per share (15% of paid up capital) for the year ended June 30, 2022.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING:

Statements showing the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2022 required under Section 227 (2)
(f) of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of Corporate Governance, is annexed to this report

The Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Intemal Audit and their spouses or minor
children did not camry out any trade in the shares of the Company dunng the year,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No materal changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken
place between the end of the financial year and the date of the Report, except as disclosed in the
financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The fransactions betwaen the related parties were camed out on the basis of am's length prices.
The Company has fully complied with the best practices on transfer pricing as contained Act and
Code. The details of all related party fransactons were placed before the Audit Committee and upon
its recommendation the same were approved by the Board of Directors.
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BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLANS:

As part of Business Continuity Plan, remote disaster recovery sites have been adequately set up for
maintaining backup server and data in case our primary server encounters any issues

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES:

The Board of the Company, in compliance with the requirement of the Code of Corporate Govemance
and the Companies Act, 2017, annually undertakes a formal process of self-evaluation of performance
of the Board as a whole and s commitiees. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the
Board's overall performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in
the context of objectives set for the Company. The core areas of focus are;

= Alignment of corporate goals and objectives with the vision and mission of the Company

«  Strateqy formulation for sustainable operation

« Board's independence and

«  Evaluation of Board's Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities set
oul in respective terms of reference.

An annual evaluation questionnaire developed in conformity with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Govemnance) Regulations, 2019 is circulated to the Directors for performance evaluation.
stnct level of confidentiality is exercised by the Company Secretary upon receipt of completed
questionnaires. These are then evaluated to identify areas that require improvement and highhght
differences of opinion, if any. For the financial year ended June 30, 2022, the Board's overall
parformance and effectivenass has been assessed as "Satisfactory’

Review of CEO’s Performance

The parformance of the CEO is formally appraised through the evaluation system which includes the
performance of the business, the accomplishment of objectives with reference to profits, organization
building, succession planning and corporate success.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION:

The company has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of its Directors in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019. The company does not pay remuneration to its non-executive
directors including independent directors except fee for attending the meetings of the Board and its
committees. The Directors fee for attending the meetings paid to the Directors is disclosed on Note
41.3 to the financial statements

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board of Directors of your Company take pleasure in expressing their sincere gratitude and
appreciation for the outstanding commitment and contnbution of all the employees. We would also like
to thank our bankers, vendors, dealers, architects and shareholders for their continued trust and
reliance placed in the Company.

On behalf of the Board

b AJ Nt~ J.KTJ Casry”

SYED MASOQD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWASJI
Chief Executve Officer Director

Karachi: September 13, 2022
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PERFORMANCE OF LAST SIX YEARS
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Contribution to National Exchequer
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited (the Company)

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We hawva reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Requlations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited for the year ended 30 June 2022 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 3& of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whather the Statement of Compliance rafiects the status of
the Coampany’s compliance with the grevisians of the Regulations and repaort if it does not and to
Righlight any non-compliance with the reguirements ol the Regulations. A review I5 limited primarily to
Imquiries af the Compa ny's persannel and review of various documents preparad by the Campany ta
comply with the Regulations.

A a part of our audit of the financial statements we are reguired to oblain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach, We are nob required to consider whether the Board of Directors statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls o to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, tha ':[:I'I'I.':I-!--"'l""ﬂ corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place befora the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audil Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Commitiee.

Based on our review, nathing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compilance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2022,

r:-? ﬁw.:..]é.———-,

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachl

Date: 22 September 2022

UDiM: CR20221007BdSpO0OTHHE
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH

LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

a. Male: - 06
b. Female: =01

2. The composition of Board is as follows:

a) Independent Directors
(including a female director)

- Mr. Fercze Jehangir Cawasj
- Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan
b) Other Non-executive Directors - Mr. Rafig M. Habib

= Mr. Muhammad Salman Bumey
- Mr. Abdul Hai M. Bhaimia

- Mr. Imran All Habib

¢) Executive Director - Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery

*In a board comprising of 7 members, one third works out to be 2.33 in which fraction is below half (i.e. 0.3).
The fraction contained in such one-third is not rounded up to one. Company has quaified and expenenced
independent directors on the board who perform and camy out their responsibility diigentty.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is sening as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
dsseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procadures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board:

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations;

10.

n

12.

13

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

SYED MASCOD ABBAS JAFFERY
Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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All the directors on the board have either acquired fraining program of are exempt from the requirement.
The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financal Officer mcluding terms and conditions of his
employment. The Board has also approved change in remuneration Company Secretary and Head of
Intermal Audit. The Board has comphed with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

Chief financial officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of
the Board;

The Board has formed committees compnsing of members given below:

a) Audit Committes

- Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawasiji Chairman
- Mr. Imran All Habib Member
- Mr. Abdul Hai M. Bhairmia Member
- Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan Member

b) H.R. and Remuneration Committee

- Mr. Feroze Jehangir Cawasji Chairman
- Mr. Muhammad Salman Bumey Member
- Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery Member
- Mrs. Farhana Mowjee Khan Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committea - Four quarterly meetings
b) HR and Remuneration Committee - Two meetings

The Board has outsourced the intermnal audit function 1o M's. Noble Computer Services (Private) Limited who
are considered suitably qualified and expernienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and

procedures of the Company’,

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the GQuality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with Intemational
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopled by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm invalved in the audit are not a close relative
{(Spouse, parenit, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

We canfirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
compled with.

Rafiq M. Habib
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financal stalements of Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial staterments, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state thal we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017), in the manner 50 required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemnational Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we hawve fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit maftters are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the cument period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. e
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3. No.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Existence and valuation of stock-in-<trade

As discussed in note 13 fo the accompanying
financial statements, the stock-in-trade balance
constitutes approximately 21% of tolal assets of
the Company as at the reporting date. This
comprises raw and packing materal,
work-in-process  (WIP), finished goods and
stock-in-transit.

As disclosed in note 6.7 to the accompanying
financial statements, the cost of finished goods
is determined on weighted average cost of
direct material and labour including a proportion
of production overheads.

The WNet Realizable Value (NRV) of
slock-in-trade is determined mainly keeping in
view the estimated selling price in the ordinany
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimaled costs necessary
to make the sale.

We have considered this area o be a key audit
matter due to s materiality and judgments
involved in estimating the NRV of underlying
slock-in-frade as well as the management’s
judgment imvolved in determining an

appropriate costing basis.

Qur key audit procedures among others included
the following:

= Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
process with respect to purchase and
consumplion of raw and packing material.
Also  tested design and operating
effectiveness of confrols relevant to such

Process.

« Observed stock counts at year end to
ascertain the existence and condibon of
stock-in-trade and evaluated the
appropriateness of the basis of identification
of the obsolete stock-in-frade.

»  Reviewed managements procedures for
evaluating the NRV of stock-in-trade,
performed testing on sample basis to assess
the NRV and evaluated the adequacy of write
down of stock-in-trade to NRV by performing
a review of sales close to and subsequent to
the year-end and comparnng with the cost for
a sample of products.

« Tested the accuracy of ageing analysis of
stock-in-trade, on a sample basis, o evaluate
provision for slow moving stock-in-trade
assessed by the management.

*  Assessed the appropriateness of
management’s basis for the allocation of cost
and production overheads and tested the
calculations of per unit cost of finished goods,
o a sample basis.

*  Reviewed relevant documents, including but
not limited to supplier's invoices, letters of
credits and shipping documents to verify the
valuation of stock-in-fransit as at the reporting

date as well as inspecied subsequent goods
receipt note, on a sample basis.

« Assessed the adequacy of related financial
statement disclosures in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework_

Lo
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5. No.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Capital expenditure

As disciosed in note 7.1 and 7.5 to the
accompanying financial statements, the
Company incurred significant amount of capital
expenditure during the year amounting 1o Rs.
124779 million and Rs. 701.51 million
transferred to operating fixed assats.

We have identified this as a key audit matter as
this represents a significant transaction for the
year and involves management's evaluation of
components of cost to be capitalized In
accordance with applicable financial reporting
framenwork.

Our key audit procedures amaong others included
the following:

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
process with respect to capial expenditure
and fested design and opeérating
effectiveness of controls relevant to such
Process.

Reviewed whether the components of cost
capitalzed meet the recognition criteria of an
asset, in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting standards.

Performed substantive audit procedures
including physical verfication, on a sample
basis, of fixed asseats acquired, assessment of
nature of costs capitalized through testing of
amounts and review of related third-party
imvoices, confracts, delivery notes, letter of
credits, shipping documents and supporting
documents.

Reviewed tming of capdaization by
examining, on a sample basis, the completion
| transfer cerificates from the Compamy's
technical department.

Reviewed management's estimates about
the useful life of assets so capitalized and
consequent depreciation rates used by the
Company

Assessed the adequacy of related financial
statement disclosures in accordance with the

applicable financial reporting framework.

Lo

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do nol express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
1o report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such intermal controd as management determines is necassary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going contem and using the going
concemn basis of accounting unless management either infends to liquidate the Company or o cease
operations, or has no realistic altermative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives an to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in FPakistan will abways detect a matenal misstatemnent when it exists.
Misstaterents can anse from fraud or emor and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements, Lo
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As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

«  ldentify and assess the nsks of material misstaterment of the financial statements, whether due 1o
fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and oblain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not delecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuling from emor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivenass of the Company's intemal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of managemeant’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists relaled to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we
conciude that a matenal uncerainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditors report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease lo continue as a going concem,

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staternents. including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the board of direclors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our iIndependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the cument penod and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication, Lo

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Basad on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been Kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX
of 2017);

b} the statement of financial position, the statement of proft or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash fiows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and retumns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1880), was deducted by
the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Riaz A. Rehman
Chamdia.

E‘Iful.l_.-_.

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi

Date: 22 September 2022
UDIN: AR202210078dJzsX8Y IV
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

HNON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Long-term loans

Long-term security deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spare parts
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Prepayments and other receivables
Short-term investments

Cash and bank balances

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital

240,000,000 (2021:240,000.000) ordinary shares of Rs.5/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Reserves

NOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term financing - secured

Deferred Income

Lease liabilities

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) payable
Deferred tax liability - net

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Unpaid dividend

Current maturity of long-term financing
Current maturity of deferred income
Current maturity of lease liabilities
Current maturity of GIDC payable
Taxation - net

Sales tax payable

CONTINGENCIES AMD COMMITMENTS

The annsxed nodes from 1 ko 48 form an inbegral par of these financial stalemants,

Mote

18

BpuNE

June 30 June 30
2022 2021
P == [z i 000 —=cccna
3,456,004 2 696,148
263,363 240,668
5,793 7.035
- 350
32.149 27.025
3,757,309 _ 297,226
503,682 440 609
1,584,510 1,465,862
175,043 234,251 |
50,847 37.901
15,308 15,395
1,348,374 1,679,505
. 126497| | 178,786
3,804,261 4 052 399
7,561,570 7.023,625
1,200,000 1,200,000
1,196,600 1,196,600
1,645,508 1,447,336
2 842,108 2 643,936
223 825 149,670 |
58,271 41,765
198,725 173,289
316,669 566, 365
34,733 54,157
832,223 985,246
2,548 395 2203255/
3,279 3,281
2,942 1,130
8.712 8.520 |
5.494 -
111,355 108,156
463,229 231,200 |
354 403 422 641
368,426 415,260
3,887,239 3,304 443
7 561,570 7.023 625

L] s
Pati§ IS, b\ 4 bz 01‘/1 T Cay
MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWASJI

Chief Financial Officer Cheef Executive Officer Director

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
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June 30 June 30
2022 2021
NG‘E oLy S [F'“:'"Eﬁ m Eﬂ:ﬂ]] R
Turnover - net 28 11,898,966 9 804 498
Coat of sales 29 (8,903,967) (6,844 271)
Gross profit 2,994,999 3,080,227
Selling and distnbution costs 30 (1,602,220) (1,394 662)
Administrative expenses 31 {335,856) (289,144)
Allowance) / reversal for expected credit loss 14.3 19,546) 18,731
1 (1,665,075)
Other income 3z 181.188 299 663
Operating profit 1,218,565 1,684,815
Finance costs 33 (115,840) (107 ,.444)
Other expenses 34 95.936) (137,629)
(211,776) (245,073)
Profit before taxation 1,006,788 1,449 742
Taxation as (509,467) (524,854)
Profit after taxation 497,322 924,888
{Rupenes)
Eamings per share - basic and diluted 36 2.08 3.8B6
Theer arinend notes: tom 1 80 46 fomn an nlegenl parl of these fnancial sialements,
Jutri§ 9 5,1\,9._@_;‘-;, 61(1 J Gy
MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWASJI
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director



Annual Report 2022 58

57 Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited —
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
June 30 June 30 . Raserves
2022 2021 Capital
; resene Revenue regerves
AR R I PR Issued, [Accumulated
subscribed lass)
Profit after taxation 497,322 924 888 and paid-up Share General  mappopriated Total _
capital PrEMELET rEgerye profit reserves  Total equity
Other comprehensive income - - s = (Rupees in "D0O) =
T qomphafafiaive oI Tof Me yed e 2es,008 Balance as at June 30, 2020 1,196,600 449,215 478,000 (404,767) 522,448 1,719,048
The s molas | 1 ha 48 lom intsgral parl of thess fnancial staksmants,
w o - “ Profit after taxation : : - , 524, 24888

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive incorme

for the year - - - 924888 924888 924888

Balance as at June 30, 2021 1,196,600 449215 478,000 220,121 1,447,336 2,643,936

Final dividend & 25% for the
year ended June 30, 2021 - -

(299,150) (299,150) (299,150)

497,322| 497,322|] 497,322

gt

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

for the year - - 497,322 497,322 497 322

Balance as at June 30, 2022 1,196,600 _ 449,215 _ 478,000 718,293 1,645508 2,842,108

The anneand raolas from 1 % 48 lom an inbegral part of thosoe finencial stalemantba

Jutn§ ¥, b AL b St Jutnd§ ¥ bAd Mouaa- dr T Gy

MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWASJI MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CaAWAS.JI
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Finandial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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CASH FLOWS FROM QOPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit bealons taxation

Adjustmenis for non-cash and other ilems:
Depreciation on

- operating fixed assels

- fight-cd-use assets

- irvastment proporlies

Finance costs
Dividend income on mubual funds
Allowance | {reversal) for expocted credit loss
Allowance [/ (roversal) for slow moving stores and spane paris
Allowance | (reversal) for slow moving skock-in-trade
Unrealized gain on short-lerm investiments - mulual Tund unils
Amorlization of delerred income
Gain on remeasurement of GIDC payable
Gain on digposal o operaling fixed assets
Gain on disposal of lease assols

Operaling profil before working capilal changes

gnnraaaa] I decrease in curment osaats
bores and spar paris

Shock-in-rade

Fade dobls

Loans and advancos

Propaymenis and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in curment liabilities
Fade and other 5
Sales tax payable

Cash generaled from operations

Imcome tax paid
Lﬁmm cosls pmd

gHierm loans -

D%Iorm munrydnpmlts ned

Hli cash gamtud from operaling activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Caypital iture
Procaods from disposal of oporating fixed assols
Mwmmrmﬂﬁmm Inam
Shor-erm invesiments made VOar - il unitz
Short-lerm invesiments redecmed ﬂ'lam rrsucal furd units

Dividend on mutual funds received
Mel cash used in investing aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term financing cbtained duning the vear

Ropayment of long-term linancing

anayfnw;mf leaso abilities

Meal cash used in financing aclivilies

Met (decreasea) f increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients al the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year

MNate

o=
Gk Lak

BEERRSR Yol

20.2
211

a7

The annexed nobes from 1 1o 48 loem an integral part of these financial stalementa

June 30 Jume 30
2022 1
[ Fugeesss i 000 e
1,006,789 1,449 742
588,549 620,964
101,723 BB8.30d8
1,242 1,242
115,840 107 444
(81,679) 34,763
19,546 18,731
27,150 1 1.921}
2,368 (21,486
{1,034) HﬂEJ
{2,195)
: (161,74
(3,011} 1I:!l 21
;Is.mig
e b EEJEEE
1.767,780 2008 024
{90, 225) | 97,5647 |
{121,018} (225,330)
30,862 41,431
(12, 94&: 16.%_} g]
4
T84 mj ra&‘ussg
| (26,834 27 661
E: O TBERM
{02855 2 2508500
(597,129) (114, 536)
{17,229) (18,065)
as0 (166)
{5,124) i#.ﬁ]
gm?ag g . g
(1,347, 785) (647,012)
4,201 13,345
5&, 000 égamn}
{(3,639,475) (3.007 067
3,780,088 1,883 954
| 81,879 34 763
{1,068, 202] (1,678,017
g1 418 Eﬁis‘zf
(9,624) (269,100
{119,527) (104,
297,340 4 5
(335 uﬁi 73
(187, 530) 2831
778, 7BE 455,_?%_
500,856 778,786

------
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MUSTAFA JAFAR SYED MASOOD ABBAS JAFFERY FEROZE JEHANGIR CAWAS.JI
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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1.1

1.2

13

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited
company, under the repealed Companies Act 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) on November 7,
1978 and listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is primarily engaged in the
manufacture and sale of tiles and trading of allied building products.

Geographical location and addresses of all the business units other than those stated in note 1.3 are
as under;

Business Unit Address Production Facility
Registered office & 15th Milestone, Mational Highway:, Tiles & building
production plant (Unit 1): Landhi, Karachi. material products
Production plant (Unit 2): Deh Khanto Tappo, Landhi, District Malir,  Tiles

Bin Qasim Town Karachi.

Froduction plant (Islamabad): Plot Mo. 01, ANF Road, Yamaha Chowk, Building material

Road, Model Town, Humak, Islamabad. products
Production plant (Lahore): 78-A, Factory Adda, Dina Nath, Main Building material
Multan Road, 46 KM Road, Lahore. products

The Company also make sales through various sales outlets located across the country
Considering the guantum, the geographical locations and addresses of all the locations are not
presented in these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprize of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Finanecial Accounting Standards (IPAS) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified under Companies Act, 2017
(the Act) and, provisions of and directives issued under the Act. Where the provisions of and
directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs and IFAS, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Act have been followed.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
otherwise specifically stated,

These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani rupee, which is the Compamy's
functional and presentation currency.

AMENDMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Amendments to approved accounting standards effective during the year

The company has adopted the following amendments to IFRSs for financial reporting which became
effective for the curment year:
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4.2

Amendments to approved accounting standards

IFRS 9, |1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFBS 4 and IFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments)
IFRS 16 - Covid-12-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments to the approved accounting standards did not have any
material effect on the Company's financial statements.

Amendments and improvements to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
The following standards, amendments and improvements to approved accounting standards as

applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standards, amendments or improvements:

Amendments Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments) January 01, 2022
1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before

Intended Use (Amendments) January 01, 2022
1AS 37 Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

(Amendments) January 01, 2022
1A 1 Classification of Liabilities as Curent or Non-current

(Amendments) January 01, 2023
1AS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments) January 01, 2023
IAS B Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments) January 01, 2023
1AS 12 Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising

from a single transaction (Amendments) January 01, 2023
IFRS 10/ Sale or Contribution of Aszets between an Investor
IAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture {(Amendment) Mot yet finalised

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the |ASB (2018-2020 cycle)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments = Fees in the "10 percent’ test for
derecognition of financial liabilities January 01, 2022

IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements January 01, 2022

IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incentives January 01, 2022
The above amendments and improvements are not expected to have any material impact on the

Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.
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6.1

6.1.1

Further, the following new standards have been issued by |IASBE which are yet to be notified by the
SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan and are not expected to have any material impact
on the Company's financial staterments in the period of initial application.

Standard IASB effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Confracts January 01, 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Companys accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the cicumstances. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in amy
future periods affected. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management
has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the financial statements:

Motes

6.1.1,62 63, 7.1,
73882

determining the method of depreciation, residual values and useful lives of
operating fixed aszsets, right-of-use assets and investiment property
determining the provision for slow moving stores and spare parts and
stock-in-trade and adjustment of stock-in-trade to their net realizable value
(NRV) 66, 67,12&13

determining the allowance for expected credit loss on trade debts 6.8 814
recognition of current and deferred taxation 614, 23 &35
leases 613 & 21
contingent liabilities 617

gas infrastructure development cess (GIDC) payable 22

deferred income 6.12&20

SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assels

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any
except for freehold land, which are stated at cost less any impairment in value, if any

Cost in relation to certain fixed assels, including capital work-in-progress, signifies historical cost and
financial charges on bormrowings for financing the projects until such time as the projects are
substantially ready for their intended use.
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Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss on straight line basis, other than freehold land
which iz determined to have an indefinite life, at the rates specified in note 7.1 to the financial
statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for
use and on disposals upto the month immediately preceding the month of deletion,

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each statement of financial position date, and
adjusted if tations differ significantly from previous estimates which iz applied prospectively in
accordance with |AS B (Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and ermors).

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or logs as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalized when it is probable that respective future
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired,

An item of operating fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Gains and logses on disposals of operating fixed assets are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

6.1.2 Capital work-in-progress

6.2

6.3

These are stated at cost less any impairment in value. All expenditure connected with specific assets
incurred during installation and construction period including advances to suppliers and contractors
are carried under this head. These are transferred to operating fixed assetz as and when these
assets are available for use.

Right-of-use assels

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date
the underlying asset is available for uze). Right-of-use asgsets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
l=ase incentives received as applicable. Unless the Company is reasonably certain 1o obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized night-of-use assets are
depreciated using straight line method over the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to
impairment. The depreciation rates used are stated in note 8 to the financial statements.

Investment properties
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if amy

Depreciation is charged fo the statement of profit or loss applying the straight line method at the rate
specified in note 9 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month
in which an asset is put to use and on deletions up to the month immediately preceding the deletion.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss as and when incumed. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. Gain or
loss on disposals is taken to the statement of profit or loss for the year
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6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which necessarily take a substantial perod of time to get ready for their intended use, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or
loss in the perod in which they are incurred.

Research and development cosis

Research and development costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred, except for development costs that relate to design of new or improved products
which are recognised as an asset to the extent that it is expected that such asset will meet the
recognition criteria mentioned in International Accounting Standard (IAS) - 38 "Intangible Assets”.
Stores and spare parts

These are stated at cost less provision for slow moving and obsolete items. The cost iz determined
by the weighted moving average cost method except for those in transit or at bonded warehouse
which are valued at actual cost plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade, except stock in transit are valued at the lower of cost and NRY determined as follows:

Raw and packing material weighted average cost.
Work-in-process and finished goods cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable
overheads.

Stock in transit are valued at invoice price plus other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date.

Stock-in-trade is regularly reviewed by the management and slow moving items, if amy, are brought
down to their NRV MRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts, loans, deposits, long term loans, long term security deposits

Trade debts and other financial assets are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less an allowance for expected credit
losses, if amy Allowance for expected credit losses is based on lifetime ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other financial assets. Bad
debts, if any, are written off when considered irrecoverable.

Cash and cash equivalents

These are stated at cost. For the purpose of cash flow slatement, cash and cash equivalents
comprize of cash in hand, bank balances and term deposit receipts with maturity up to three months
recognised under short-term investments net of short-term running finance, if any
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6.10

6.11

612

6.13

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company:

Provigions

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of
financial position date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Deférred income

The benefit of a long-term finance at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a deferred income,
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevailing market interest rates. The deferred income is held on the statement of financial position as
a deferred credit and realised to the profit or loss over the periods necessary to match the related
depreciation charges, or other expenses of the asset, as they are incurred.

Lease liabilities

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, i.e. if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leazes, except for
short-term leases. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assels representing the right to use the underlying assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which
the event or condition that triggers the payment ocours.

In calculating the present value of lease payments. the Company uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the commencement date of the lease if the interest rale implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased o reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carmying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying
assel,
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2.13.1 Short-term leasos

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exernption to its short-term leases (i.e, those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase oplion). Lease paymenlts on such leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

6.13.2 Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

6.14

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Taxation

6.14.1 Current

Provigion for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates.
The charge for current tax also includes adjustments for prior years or otherwise considered
necessary for such years, if any Current tax is charged to the statement of profit or loss except to the
extent it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income in which case it is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

6.14.2 Deferred

6.15

6.16

6.17

Deferred taxation is provided., proportionate to local sales, on all temporary differences at the
statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Staff retirement benefit - Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a recognised provident fund for all eligible employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made to the fund both by the Company and the employees in accordance with the
rules of the acheme. The contributions from the Company are charged to the statement of profit or
loss for the year

Employees’ leave encashment

Apcrual for leave encashment is made to the extent of value of encashable accrued leaves of the
employees at the statement of financial position date as per Company’s policy.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed when:
- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company; or
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" there is a present obligation that arises from past events bul it is not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measure with sufficient reliability

6.18 Forelgn currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates ruling at the date of transaction
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. Exchange differences on foreign curmency
translations are taken to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they ocour

6.19 Financial Instruments
6.19.1 Financlal assets

The financial assets of the company mainly include trade debts, loans, deposits, long-term loans,
long-term security deposits, short-term investment, other receivables and cash and bank balances.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - debt investment; FVTOC| - equity investment; or
Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is
generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual
cash flow characteristics. Based on the business model of the Company, the financial assets of the
Company are measured and classified under IFRS 9 as follows:

Short-term investments in mutual fund units are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Trade
debts, short-term investments in TDRs [ treasury bills and other financial assets are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less an allowance for expected credit losses,
if any.

Derecognition

A financial asset, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets s pnmarily
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement
and either the Company has transferred substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset or the
Company has neither transferred nor retained subatantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transfemred control of the asset.

6.19.2 FAinancial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and bomowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial
liabilities are either classified at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss. The Company does
not have any financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial iability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
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of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss,

Loans and bormrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss. This category applies to long-term financing of the Company as disclosed
in note 20 to the financial statements.

6.19.3 Impairment of financlal assets

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) iz based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The
ghortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by
the Company:

At each statement of financial position date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Loss
allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross camying
amount of the respective asset.

The Company uses the standard’s simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life time ECL
on its financial assels The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the

Companys historical credit logs experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
financial assets and the economic environment.

6.19.4 Offselling of financial instruments

6.20

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a cumently enforceable legal right to offzet the recognised amounts and
there iz an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneoushy

Unclaimed dividend

This is recognised at the amount of dividend declared and unclaimed by shareholders from the date
it became due and payable.
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6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

Unpaid dividend

Thia is recognised at the amount of dividend declared and claimed by shareholders but remained
unpaid for the period of 3 years from the date it became due and payable.

Operating segmenls

For management purposes. the activities of the Company are organised into one reportable
operating segment. The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment based on the
nature of the products, risks and returns, organisational and management structure, and internal
financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in these financial statements are
related to the Company's only reportable segment.

Share capital and reserves

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Reserves comprise of capital and revenue reserves. Capital reserves represent share premium while
revenue regerves comprise of general reserves and unappropriated profit. The purpose of general
reserves includes, but not limited to, fulfilling various business needs like meeting contingencies,
offsetting future losses, enhancing the working capital, ete.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred lax assets are
assessed at each statement of financial position date to ascertain whether there is any indication of
impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine
the extent of impairment loss, if any An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the
statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to
disposal and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future
cash flows using a discount rate that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the assets.

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when the control of the goods is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expecis to be
entitled in exchange for those goods according to the negotiated contractual terms, The Company
has generally concluded that it acts as principal in its revenue arangements because it typically
controls the goods or services belfore transferring them to the customer.

Performance obligations held by the Company are not separable, and are not partially satisfied,
gince they are satisfied at a point in time, when the customer accepts the products. In most of the
cases, payments against the goods are realized in the month of delivery without any variable
considerations, financing componeénts and guarantess.

The Company recognizes an account receivable when the performance obligations have been met,
recognizing the comesponding revenue. Moreover, the considerations received before satisfying the
performance obligations are recognized as advances from customer.
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6.26

6.27

Retum on bank deposits / saving accounts is recognised on accrual basis;

Rental income on investment property is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term;
and

Retum on short-term investments and other income it any is recognised on accrual basis.
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.
Dividend and appropriation 1o reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved.

Eamings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EFS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

June 30 June 30
2022 2021
MNote USSR [ - F.F PE ;) )| [——
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 7.1 2,390,644 2237914
Capital work-in-progress 7.4 1,065,360 458,234
3.,.1.1-5.5_,0@4 2._E|HE: 148
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Building on freehold land

Freshold land

7.2 Particulars of immovable fixed assoets:

June 30

June 30

2021

2022

ane [Fuiprres i TN} aessseananas

Mot

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Cost

407,394

(166,726)
240,668

496,947

(233,584)
263,363

8.1
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Accumulated depreciation
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8.1 COST
Balance at beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

Remeasurement of lease liabilties

Balance at end of the year

8.2 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Balance at beginning of the year
Charge for the year

On disposals during the year
Balance at end of the year

Depreciation rate %

MNote

8.3

8.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales - manufacturing
Selling and distribution costs

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

29.1
30

June 30 June 30
2022 2021
--------- (Rupaas in DO0) ---ee-eeemme
407,394 346,136
148,044 70,725
{61,923) -
3,432 0.46
166,726 78418
101,723 88,308
(34,865) -
—l 66,726
11-67 11-67
31,965 24,211
69,758 64,097
101,723 88,308
NET BOOK

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  WALUE
As at  Additions As at Charge for As at As at  Depreciation
July 01, July 01, the year June 30, June 30, rate
2021 2021  (note 30) 2022 2022 %
[ Fugpeesea. i '000)

Freehold land 3 3 - - 3
Building on
freehold land 1,083 - 1,083 - 1,083 10
Showroom 7.800 - 4,563 702 5.265 2535 10
Apartments 6.000 = 6000 2206 <0 2.745 3.255 10
2022 14 886 & 7,851 1,242 9.093 5,793
2021 14,886 6609 1242 7851 7,035
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The forced sales values and fair values of investment properties based on the latest valuation carried out
by an independent valuer on June 30, 2022, as at the statement of financial position date, are as under:

Forced sales values Fair values
June 30, June 30, June 30,  June 30,

2022 2021 2022 2021
------------ {Rupaas in T} caeeeeeeee
Freehold land 6,906 5843 8,632 7,304
Building on freehold land 2,39 2,152 2,989 2,680
Showroom 4,368 4992 5,460 6,240
Apartments 5,280 5,280 6,600 6,600

18,945 18267 23,681 22,834

Particulars of immovable investment properties:

Particulars Location Total area / covered area
Freehold land 15th Milestone, Mational Highway, 332 sq. yards

Landhi, Karachi.
Building on freehold land 15th Milestone, National Highway, 2,989 sq. ft.

Landhi, Karachi.

Showroom Shop No. 11, Mezzanine Floor, Pace N 260 =q. ft.
Pace Mall, Bosan Boad, Multan.
Apartments Flat Mo. 17 & 20, Ffth Floor, Bismillah 770 eq. ft. & 860 sq. f1.
Heights, Tando Wali Muhammad, Ward A,
Hyderabad.
June 30 June 30
2022 2021
LGHG'TEHM LDAME MDtE 111111111111 |nu|:|,|'||_|ﬂ in I:ﬂ:l:'“ ------------
Secured
Employees 101 2,382 2 653
Executives 101 1,113 450
3,485 3,103
Current maturity of long-term loans 15 (3,495) {2.?{;&%

Represent loans given for the purchase of household equipment which are repayable within two years of
disbursement. These carry no mark-up and are secured against staff retirement benefits. These are not
discounted to the present value using market rate as the impact is not material to the financial
slaternents.

June 30 June 30
2022 2021

LﬂHG-TEHM EEEUHW DEFﬂEITE Motea s ax (Hupeas in ) s=ssssae= ana
Rent 1141 28,099 23,121
Litilities 2,943 2,943
Others 1,107 961

11.2 =2, 149 27,025
Includes security deposit against rent to the following related parties:
Thal Limited 709 F09
Habib Metro Pakistan Pvt Limited 1,266 1,266

1,975 1,975
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11.2 Represents refundable deposits paid to landlords, utility and other service providers. As the period of 14.1  Include receivables from the following related parties that are neither past due nor impaired and are aged
deposit vanes on coniract fo contract basis, the deposits are recorded at historical cost and not within 90 days:
discounted to the present value as the impact is not matenial to the financial statements,

June 30 June 30 Indus Motor Company Limited 1,999 82
2022 2021 Agriauto Industries Limited - 2BB
12. STORES AND SPARE PARTS | —— — (Rupeas in D00} --ee-eeee Thal Limited - 30
Stores 195,205 190,975 14.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related parties at the end of any month during the year was
Spare parts Re 5.062 million (2021: Rs. 4.599 million).
- in hand 424,236 324,4naJ June 30, June 30,
- in transit 13,902 27,737 2022 029
438,138 352,145 143 Movement in allowance for expected credit loss: Note  coee (Rupsees in 000} wssm-nsa-
633,343 543,120
Provision for slow moving stores and spare parts 121 (129,661) (102,51 ‘Ig Balance at beginning of the year 158,236 177,964
k : Allowance / (reversal) for expected credit loss for the year 19,546 (18.731)
12.1 Movement of provision for slow moving stores and spare parts: Written-off during the year ~{B3) 1 5&929%
Balance at end of the year 177,719 158,
Balance at beginning of the year 133% g. 11114;;301
Charge / (reversal) for the year 291 : (11,920) 15. LOANS AND ADVAMCES
Balance at end of the year 129,661 102,511
Consldered good
13. STOCK-IN-TRADE Loans
Current maturity of long-term loans 10 3,495 2,753
Raw and packing material
- in hand 924,784 627,920 Advances
- in transit 147,048 190,566 Employees 295 62
24 4 1,071,832 818,486 Suppliers and contraciors ‘ 38,142 15,282
Collector of customs 8,915 19,804
Finished goods 50,847 37,901
- manufacturing 29.1 484,701 | [ 613,950 16. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
- lrading 29.2 12,267 | 16,035
131 496,968 629,994 Prepayments
1,611,604 1,490 588
Provigion for slow moving stock-in-trade 132 (27,094) 24_??{&6%_ Insurance E,T 3,744
1,584 510 1 .565, Letter of guarantee margin 2,165 1,324
13.1 Others 5,355 7.841 \
*" Includes stock-in-trade costing Rs. 177.866 million (2021: Rs. 228.558 million) which has been written 13,079 12,909
down to its net realizable value (NRV) amounting to Ra. 56.975 million (2021: Ra 73.363 million) during Other receivables 2,229 2.486
the year 15.308 15,385
June 30 June 30 17. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
13.2 Movement of provision for slow moving stock-in-trade: Note 2022 2021
------------ {Rupeas in D00} e At amortized cost
Balance at beginning of the year 29 1 24,726 46,212
Charge / (reversal) for the year ) 2,368 (21,486) Term deposit receipts (TDAs)
Balance at end of the year 27.094 24 726 - up to three months 171 416,000 600,000
- more than three months - 56,000
14. TRADE DEBTS 416,000 656,000
Treasury bills
Unsecured = up to three months 17.2 48,359 -
- Considered good 1418142 175,043 234 251 464,359 656,000
- Considered doubtiul 177,719 168,236 At fair value through profit or loss
352,762 392 487
Mutual fund units 17.3 884,015 1,023,595
Allowance for expected credit loss 14.3 {(177,719) (158,236) ~ 1348374 “ 1679505

175,043 234 251
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18.
17.1 Represents term deposil receipts (TDRs) ranging from 15 days to 3 months term (2021: 15 days to
1 Year) with various commercial banks under conventional banking relationship camying profit at the
rate of 9% to 18.5% (2021: 7% to 9%) per annum, having latest maturity up to July 15, 2022.
17.2 This carries mark-up rate of 14.5% (2021: Nil) per annum with latest maturity in July 2022.
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 19.1
Units - NAY in Rupees -- — (Rupeas in "000) - '
17.3 MCB Arif Habib Cash Management 1485442 1488827 101299 100959 150475 150311 20.
Optimizer
Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund 1,621,005 4,031,030 50 50 B1,050 201552
Faysal Islamic Cash Fund 473,963 1231212 100 100 47,386 123121
Al Hamra Islamic Money Market Fund 55190 1012172 99.51 99.51 5,493 100,721
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund 1,246,539 1519888 101.088 101021 126040 153551
HEL Cash Fund 1,150,142 1012018 104.498 101,202 116,804 102418
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund 544,106 1,028,150 94371 28,238 53,525 101,004 20.1
Alfalah |slamic Rozana Amdani Fund 169,133 8424 100 100 16,913 842
Laksaon Investment Money Market Fund 558,655 595958  101.397 100804 56,646 60,075
UEL Al Ameen Islamic Cash Plan - 1 1382 300,000 100 100 1,389 30,000
Pakistan Cash Management Fund 1,362,824 . 50487 . BB, 779 .
NEP Money Market Fund 13,044,238 E 8.031 - 129,514 .
MCB Pakistan Fixved Return Plan 300,209 . 100 30,021 -
72022 096 12.227.780 BB A5 1023565
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note semeeeae- (Rupeas in D)) ———eeee
Cash in hand 5567 3.261 20,2
Cash at banks:
Current accounts with;
- conventional banks 18.1 85,122|
- Islamic banks 32,552
Saving accounts 18.2 | 57.851|
178,786
18.1 Includes balance of Rs, 11.685 million (2021: Rs. 14.013 million) maintained with Bank Al Habib 20.3
Limited, a related party.
18.2 These carry profit rates ranging from 5.5% to 12.25% per annum (2021: 5.5% to 7.5% per annum).

These balances are held in accounts maintained under conventional banking.
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ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021 2022 2021
(Number of shares in ‘000) ssmmsamaees [RUpEES in D) sss=== e
Ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each
199,627 189,627 Fully paid-up in cash 998,135 998,135
1,150 1,150 lssued for consideration other 5,750 5,750
than cash
38,543 38,543 lssued as bonus shares 192,715 182,715

___ 238530 239320 1,196,600 1,196,600

Voting rights and board selection are in proportion to the shareholding.

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
LONG-TERM FINANCING - SECURED Note (Rupees in ‘000)
SBP refinance scheme for renewable energy 201 232,537 159,190

Current maturity of long-term financing

22 —2Em 14587

This represents long term financing facility obtained from a conventional bank under State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) refinance scheme for renewable energy, recognised initially at fair value, The fotal
facility amounts to Rs. 500 million (2021: 00 million) and carries mark-up at the rate of 3% plus
0.45% (2021: 3% plus 0.45%) per annum payable quarterly. The facility is repayable in ten years
with twio years grace period from the date of disbursement. The facility is secured against first spe-
cific hypothecation charge over present and future plant and machinery related to the solar power
project for the disbursed amount in addition to margin of 10% covered through lien over Term
Deposit Receipt (TDR). The incremental borrowing rate for the purposes of discounting adjustment
for recognition at fair value is taken at 3 month KIBOR plus 0.5% (2021: 3 month KIBOR plus 0.5%)
per annum.

June 30, June 30,
Note 2022 2021
[ |:R|JF|'E‘E‘5 n EE{” P —
Movement of long-term financing:
Balance at beginning of the year 159,190 269,100
Financing received during the year 91,418 200,321
Repayment made during the year (9,624) (269,100)
Recognised as deferred income 203 & 204 (24,195) (41,765)
Unwinding of finance cost 15,748 634
Balance at end of the year 232,537 159,190
Current maturity of long-term financing (8,712 5952{};
223,82 J

This represents deferred income recognised in respect of the benefit of below-market interest rate
on long-term financing. The benefit has been measured as the difference between the fair value of
the loan and the proceeds received. The Company has used the prevailing market rate of mark-up
for similar instruments to calculate fair values of respective loans. The following is the movement of
deferred income.
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20.4

21.

211

21.2

22.

Movement of deferred income:

Balance at beginning of the year
Recognised during the year
Amortized during the year
Balance at end of the year

Current maturity of deferred income

LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities
Current maturity of lease liabilities

Movement of lease liabilities:

Balance at beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Disposal during the year
Remeasurement of lease liabilities
Unwinding of finance cost during the year
Payments made during the year

Balance at end of the year

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at the statement of financial position date is as follows:

Up to one year
After one year
Total lease liabilities

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

Note -——— (Rupees in '000) ———
41,765 -
202 24,195 41,765
(2,195) ]
63,765 41,765
5,494) -
e 765
June 30, June 30,

2022 2021

Note - (Rupees in ‘'000) ——
211 310,080 281,445
(111,355) (1 E}E,Iﬁﬁg

198,725 173,28
281,445 289,681
148,044 70,725
(32,666) )
3,432 (9,467)
33 29,352 34 896

— 516080 oBiasl

GAS INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT CESS (GIDC) PAYABLE

Balance at beginning of the year
Accrual during the year
Derecognition of existing liability

Recognition of new liability
Unwinding of finance cost
Payments made during the year

Current maturity of GIDC payable
Balance at end of the year

111,355 108,156
198,725 173,289
310,080 281,445
797,565 1,124 079
- 14,764
221 : (1,138,843)
- Tavees -
221 - 977,095
53,511 57,730

71,178 (237,260

- 779,898 - T975

__(483,229) (231,200)
316,660 566,365

221

23.

24,
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The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCF), through its judgment dated August 13, 2020 has
declared GIDC Act, 2015 a valid legislation. Under the judgement, all gas consumers including the
Company were ordered to pay the outstanding GIDC hiability as at July 31, 2020 to the Government in 24
equal monthly installments. GIDC was declared payable on the presumption that burden of same has
been passed to the customers. Aggrieved by the Judgement, the Company, along with other industries,
filed a review petition before the SCP, which was dismissed by the SCP on Novemnber 2, 2020. However,
while deciding the review petition, the SCP stated that the Government of Pakistan (GoP) is agreeable
to recover the arrears in 48 monthly installments instead of 24 monthly instaliments.

The Company also filed a Suit with the Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS) in September 2020 against
collection of GIDC installments, before a factual determination of GIDC pass on is camied out, and the
HCS granted a stay in September 2020 against recovery of GIDC payable from the Company till the
finalization of matter by HCS. The matter is currently pending in the HCS.

Pursuant to the above decisions of the SCP, the management of the Company, in the pnor year,
derecognised the liability for GIDC and recognised new liability for GIDC at the present value of future
cashfiows considenng 48 instaliments. The Company started making payments from November 2020 in
48 equal manthly instaliments. However, the installments for the period from October 2021 to June 2022
amounting to Rs. 213.533 million were not paid by the Company under the aforementioned stay order
from HCS as S5GC started recovering GIDC as per 24 equal installiments instead of 48 equal
installments from October 2021.

Based on the legal advice obtained by the management, the Company is confident that there are strong
grounds to support that recovery in 48 equal installments remains applicable and accordingly, no
adjustment is required to be made in the measurement of financial liability in these financial statements.
Further, the Company has also not accounted for the late payment surcharge based on the recovery stay
granted by the HCS in line with the advice of its legal advisor. The current and non-current portion of
GIDC in the financial statements have been segregated based on recovery in 48 equal monthly
instaliments and the unpaid installments from October 2021 to June 2022 are included in the current
maturity of GIDC.

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - net Mota —— (Rupees in '000) ————
Deferrad tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences:
- accelerated tax depreciation 187,700 171,062
Deferred tax assel on deductible temporary differences:
- provisions (136,044)] (105,080]]
- lease liabilities and right of use assels (15,417) {11,825)
- long-term financing and deferred income (1,508) it e

(152,867 (116,505)

34,733 54 157

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 241 696 867 639 657
Accrued iabihies and levies 242 1,365,120 1,229,271
Advance from customers 278,834 147,723
Book over-draft 243 86,580 115,171
Payable to provident fund 24.4 5,148 4,323
Advance from employees against vehicles 24.5 14,168 3,352
Withholding tax payable 7,235 5,091
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 246 48,191 8,614
Workers' Welfare Fund 247 47,256 50,051

L
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24.1

24.2

243

24.4

24.5

24.6

24.7

25.

286.

Includes payable due to the following related parties:

Thal Limited 33,410 11,105
Razaque Steels (Private) Limited . 1,723
Habib Metro Pakistan (Private) Limited 190 180

Includes accrual for leave encashment of Rs. 10.663 million (2021: Rs. 15.184 million) and bonus
of Rs. 75.430 million (2021: Rs. 106.981 million).

Represents book overdraft balance against the un-presented cheques as at the statement of finan-
cial position date.

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

Represents amount received from employeas against Company provided vehicles and will be
adjusted on entittement of vehicle to the employee as per the Company policy.

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

Workers® Profit Participation Fund e {Rupees in '000) ——- =
Balance at beginning of the year 8,614 -
Allocation for the year 48,191 78,614

56,805 78,614
Payment made during the year (8,614) (70,000)
Balance at end of the year 48,191 8,614
Workers' Welfare Fund
Balance at beginning of the year 50,051 5,862
Allocation for the year 31,926 44 189

81,977 50,051
Payment made during the year (34,721) -
Balance at end of the year 47,256 20,051

UNPAID DIVIDEND / UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

The Company has opened separate bank accounts as required under the provision of section 244
of the Act and the required amounts have been transferred accordingly.

SALES TAX PAYABLE

Includes an amount of Rs, 6.769 million (2021: 7.601 million), 29.228 million (2021: 59.910 million)
and 352.429 million {2021: 352.429 million) in respect of withholding provincial sales tax, sales tax
payable (federal) and further tax (not charged to the customers) respectively as at the statement of
financial position date.
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27.
271

271.2

28,

28.1

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

The taxation authorities passed amended assessment orders for the tax years 2018 and 2019
during the year ended June 30, 2022 wherein disallowances were made in respect of various
matters including excess bank credit entries, excess claim of sales tax, provision against Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess and claim of certain expenses. Consequently, tax demands of Rs.
110.116 million and Rs. 148.904 million for the tax years 2018 and 2019 respectively were created.
The Company has filed appeals against the aforesaid orders before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals-il), Karachi, which are pending adjudication. Further, automatic stay from the
recovery of tax has been obtained in terms of section 140 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 by
making payment of 10% of the tax demands created above. Based on the management's
assessment and tax advisor's opinion, the Company is confident that ultimate outcome will be in
favour of the Company and accordingly, no provision is required to be recorded in these financial
statements in respect of this matter.

Commitments

{i) Commitments in respect of outstanding letters of credit against raw matenals and spares
amounting to Rs. 514,696 million (2021: Rs. 236.770 million), issued by commercial banks.

(ii} Commitments in respect of capital expenditure amounting to Rs. 51.950 million (2021:
Rs. 132.950 million) for the import of machinery, issued by commercial banks.

(i)  Commitment in respect of bank guarantees issued by a commercial bank in favour of:

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Naote = (Rupees in '000) ———
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 432,576 368,775
Mazir of Sindh High Court 341,065 281,842
Pakistan State Oil Company Ltd 40,000 40,000
Excise and Taxation Department 108,381 73,381
K-Electric 16,516 -
~ B38538 Th3098
TURNOVER - net
Local
Manufacturing 14,191,988 11,882 514
Trading 34,591 29,382
14,226,589 12,012,196
Trade discount (33,839) (131,786)
Sales tax
Manufacturing (2,288,658) (1,971,643)
Trading 5,028 | 4,269
(2,293,684) (1,975,912)
281 11898566 9 9504 498

Revenue recognised from amounts included in advance from customers at beginning of the year
amounted to Rs. 130.616 million (2021: Rs. 61.486 million).
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29. COST OF SALES Note
Manufacturing 29.1
Trading 29.2

29.1 Cost of sales - manufacturing
Raw and packing materials consumed

Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock

Manufacturing expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits 29.1.1
Fuel and power

Stores and spare parts consumed

Provision / (reversal) for slow moving stores and spare parts 12.1

Provision / (reversal) for slow moving stock-in-trade 13.2
Depreciation on

- operating fixed assels 7.3
- right-of-use assets 8.3
Repairs and maintenance

Insurance

Yehicle running expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Communication

Rates and taxes

Research costs

Legal and professional charges
Others

Work-in-process

Opening stock

Closing stock 13
Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods
Dpening stock
Closing stock 13

29.1.1 Includes Rs. 13.245 million (2021: Rs. 13.109 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

28.2 Cost of sales - trading

Mota
Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock 13

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
arEzrEEEs [Hupﬂﬁ i 'I:H:H:” srEmmEaEe
8,B8B3.014 6,825 666
20,953 18,605
8,903 967 6,844 271
818,488 661,176
3,969 654 3,068,513
_(1.071,832) -513-45%
3.716,30 6012
94365 | 867,173
2. 726,007 1,856,650
510,788 531,624
27,180 (11,920)
2,368 (21,486)
567,015 614,128
31,965 24211
170,243 75,261
12,894 15,165
22,530 22,896
2,967 4011
6,551 6,840
4,780 3,880
1,651 8945
2814 2624
2,915 3,406
2,341 "I,?EE
5,038,144 3,997 171
42 108 2871
. _..lajf-.i’_-ﬂf-]*!l (42,108
8,753,756 6,884 5
613,059 554 B48
484 701 ﬂEIﬂ,E‘E’E!
B.B83.014 6,825 666
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
{Rupees in '000) ————
16,035 20,723
17,185 13,917
_(12.267)  (16,035)
20.953 18 605

30.

30.1

3.

31.1

a1.2
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June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS Note - (Rupees in '000) ————
Salaries, wages and other benefits 30.1 232101 227,724
Freight 1,038,743 880,724
Advertisement and sales promotion 52,432 78, 304
Travelling and conveyance 38,246 16,336
Rates and taxes 9,508 8,696
Communication 6,364 6,536
Insurance 8,588 7,570
Depreciation on
- operating fixed assets f3 11,763 3,736
- right-of-use assets 8.3 69,758 64,097
- investment properties 9 1,242 1,242
Vehicle running expenses 16,049 13,218
Repairs and maintenance 28,674 53,463
Utilities 33,491 20,283
Printing and stationery 10,233 8,613
Entertainment 2,502 1,577
Legal and professional charges 1,8M 2,265
Others 245 278
1,602 220 1,394 662
Includes Rs. 7 465 million (2021: Rs. 5.679 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note ——— (Rupeesin '000) ———
Salaries, wages and other benefits 31.1 270,939 232,385
Travelling and conveyance 2,674 420
Printing and stationery 13,315 16,670
Legal and professional charges 5,702 3,076
Depreciation on operating fixed asseis T3 7,871 3,120
Vehicle running expenses 12,311 10,656
Communication 2,333 1,849
Repair and maintenance 2,686 10,368
Auditors’ remuneration 31.2 2,776 2871
Subscriptions 433 305
Insurance 2,398 BT
Others 3418 2606
335,856 289 144
Includes Rs. 7.534 million (2021: Rs. 5.938 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Auditors’ remuneration — (Rupees in '000) ——
Audit fee 1,150 1,150
Half-yearly review fee 280 290
Taxation services a0 68
Other cerlifications and reviews 612 GEB
Out of pocket expenses and taxes 634 635
2,776 2871
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June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
+2. QOTHER INCOME Note ——— (Rupeesin '000) ——
Income from financial assets
Profit on bank deposits / saving accounts 321 3,938 9479
Interest income on TDRs 37,462 37,603
Dividend income on mutual fund units 81,679 34,763
Income from Treasury Bills 567 -
123,646 81,845
Income from non-financial assets
Rental income from investment 792 792
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 3,011 10,565
ain on disposal of right-of-use assets 5,608 -
Income from scrap sales 38,926 40,715
Gain on remeasurement of GIDC payable - 161,749
Linrealised gain on shori-term investments - mutual fund units 1,034 482
Amaortization of deferred income 2,185 -
Others 5,976 3,515
57,542 217 818
181,188 298 663
32.1 Represents profit on bank accounts under conventional banking relationship.
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
33. FINANCE COSTS T — (Rupees in '000) me——
Mark-up on long-term financing 15,748 4,291
Unwinding of finance cost of lease liabilities 21.1 29,352 34,896
Unwinding of finance cost of GIDC 22 53,511 57,730
898,611 96,917
Bank charges and commission 17,229 10,527
115,840 107,444
34. OTHER EXPENSES
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 48,191 78,612
Workers' Welfare Fund 31,926 44 191
Donations 341 10,000 14,440
Exchange loss - net 5,819 386
95,936 137 629
34.1 Donation to following parties exceeds the higher of 10% of the Company’s total donations or Rs. 1 million:
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
= [RUpees in "000) —————
Habib Education Trust - 4,000
The Indus Hospital 3,000 -
Muhammad Ali Habib Welfare Trust — 4845 -
Patients' Aid Foundation 1,500 2,000
34.2 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donees except for Mr. Rafig M. Habib

who is a trustee of Muhammad Ali Habib Welfare Trust, a related party.
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June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
+5. TAXATION memeeees (Rupees in T} -
Current 528,891 603,545
Prior - (741)
Deferred 19,424 fi?E:.aﬁd
IEHHE; Iesal
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
35.1 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit:  -—— {Rupees in "000) =
Profit before tax 1,006,789 1,449 742
Tax at applicable rate of 29% (2021; 29%) 291,969 420425
Tax effects of:
super tax for the year 65,717 -
prior year tax - (T41)
expenses inadmissible for tax purposes 139,398 139 365
income subject to reduced rate of tax (8,168) (4,866)
tax rebate on donations {2,74E) (1,972)
others 23,297 {27,357)
209 467 524 854
35.2 The income tax assessment of the Company has been assessed up to and for the year 2019
corresponding to the financial year ended June 30, 2019. The Company has filed appeals before
the commissioner appeals against orders of Tax year 2018 and 2019 which are pending. The
income tax assessment for the year 2020 has not been assessed as the Company has obtained a
stay order on the notice of tax audit for the year 2020.
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
36. EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted Note
Profit for the year (Rupees in "000) 487 322 924 BEB
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year (shares in ‘000) 239,320 239,320
Eamings per share (Rupees) - basic and diluted 36.1 2.08 3.86
36.1 There is no dilutive effect of basic earmnings per share of the Company.
Juna 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Short-term investments - TDRs 17 464,359 600,000
Cash and bank balances 18 126,497 178,786
580,856 .
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38.

381

i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company finances s operations through equity, bormowings and management of working
capital with a view lo maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk. Taken as a whole, the Company is exposed to market risk (including interest rate risk,
currency risk and equity price nsk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Company's overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the financial performance. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes and assumptions during the year ended 30 June 2022 which are summarized below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, and equity price
risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk is the nisk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the Company's certain saving accounts,
short-term investments in TDRs and treasury bills, long-term financing and shori-term running
finance. The company manages it's interest rate risk by placing it's excess funds in saving accounts
in banks and by investing in TDRs and treasury bills. Management of the Company estimates that 1%
increase in the market interest rate, with all other factors remaining constant, would increase the
Company’'s profit before tax by Rs. 2.513 million and a 1% decrease would result in the decrease in
the Company's profit before tax by the same amount. However, in practice, the actual result may differ
from the sensitivity analysis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of the changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities. It mainly
arises when receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency.

The following is the foreign currency exposure as at the statement of financial position date:

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

Trade payables - USD 782,852 588,080
Trade payables - Euro 2,015 246,825

June 30, June 30,
The foliowing significant exchange rates have been applied at 2022 2021
staterment of financial position date: (Rupees)
Exchange rate - USD 204.85 157.54
Exchange rate — Euro 213.81 187.27

Annual Report 2022 BB

NMOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

{iii)

3.2

A ten percent strengthening / weakening of the Pakistani Rupee against the above foreign
currencies at the reporting date would increase / decrease profit before tax for the year by Rs. 16.08
million (2021: Ks. 13.89 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the previous year.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in prices of equity instruments. The
Company is not exposed to any equity price risk, as the Company does not have any investment in
equity shares as at the statement of financial position date.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail
to disch its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts
to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific
counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. Concentration of
credit risk arises whan a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions, The Company is mainhy
exposed to credit risk on long-term loans, long-term security deposits, trade debts, loans and
advances, short-term investments and bank balances. The Company seeks to minimize the credit
risk exposure by dealing mostly with regular and permanent parties who pay on due dates.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at statement of financial position date is as follows:

June 30, June 30,

2022 20

Note - (Rupeas in ‘000) ==

Long-term security deposits 1 32,149 27,025
Trade debts 14 175,043 234 251
Other receivables 16 2,229 2,486
Short-term investments 17 1,348,374 1,679,595
Bank balances 18 120,930 175,525
1.678,725 2,118,882

Quality of financial assets

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total
credit exposure,

The Company’s portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversifiad and transactions are entered into
with diverse credit worthy counterparties, thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit
risk.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rates as

follows: June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
(Rupess in '000) —-—-—
Customers with no defaults in the past one year
Trade debis 175,043 234 251
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oet out below is the information about the credit risk on the Company's trade debis:

_June 30, 2022
Mot yet Days Past Due
due 31-90 days 91-180 days Owver 180 Total
Fupess In ‘000"
Expected credit loss rate 2% 6% 21% 58%
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at default 90,350 49,698 44,770 167,944 352,762
Expected credit loss {1,536) (3,011 9,180)  (163,992) (177,719)
Unimpaired trade debis 88,814 46687 5590 @ 3952 175043
- June 30, 2021
Mot yet Days Past Due
due 31.90 days 91-180 days Over 180 Total
- Rupees in ‘000’
Expected credit loss rate
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at default 2% 5% % 1%
Expected credit loss 108,784 99,008 36,081 148,524 302,487
Unimpaired trade debts ___{1.768) {5.347) (6.860)  (144.461)  (158,236)
107,018 03,751 20,421 4,062 234,251

The credit quality of balances with banks can be assessed with reference to external credit rating
as follows:

June 30, June 30,
Ra“ngﬁ 2022 2021
- {Rupees in "000) ———
A1+ 120,930 175,525
120,930 179,525

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Company applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash
and bank balances, liquid investments and by keeping committed credit lines. The table below
summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at undiscounted values at the
following statement of financial position dates:

Less
om than 3 Jto12 1to05 Over 5 Total

2022 demand months months  years years
Rupees in "000

Long-term financing - 2461 137 161814 170,288 341,950
Lease liabilities - 31,858 TEBT0 238,930 15317 364,875
Trade and other payables 278,811 1,118896 97,562 - - 1,495269
Unclaimed / unpaid dividends 6,221 - - - - 6.221
GIDC payable 213,533 M178 213533 332,162 - B30.406

498565 1224393 307342 732906 185615 3038821
2021
Long-term financing - 4839 5,038 91515 141330 242722
Lease liabilities - 31,006 g2148 277813 39668 430635
Trade and other payables 147,725 980891 5B BES - - 1,197.281
Unclaimed / unpaid dividends 4411 = - = - 441
GIDC payable . 71178 213534 B16ETS - 801,588

152136 1007014 350335 DOB6204 180008 2776637

Annual Report 2022 80

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

38.4

38.5

+8.9.1

Capital Risk Management

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. As of the reporling date, the gearing ratio is as
follows:

2022 2021

- (Rupees in "000) ——
Total debt 282,096 191,435
Total equity 2842108 2643936
Total debt plus equity 3,124,204 2,835,371
Gearing ratio 9.03% 6.75%

Unavailed Credit Facilities

The facility for short-term running finance, opening letters of credit and letters of guarantees
amounted to Rs. 2,250 million (2021: Rs, 2,250 million), Rs. 950 million (2021: Rs. 1,800 million)
and Rs, 1,400 million {2021: Rs. 1,400 millicn) respectively, of which Rs. 2,250 million {2021: Rs.
2,250 million), Rs. 114 millien (2021: Rs. Nil) and Rs. 461 million (2021: Rs. 636 million)
respectively, remained unutilized as at the statement of financial position date.

38.5.2 Mark-up rates on running finance facilities range from three month KIBOR + 0.5% to six months

48.6

KIBOR + 0.35% to 1% (2021: three month KIBOR + 0.5% to six months KIBOR + 1%) per annum.

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Note {Rupees in "000) ———
Financial Instruments by category
Financial assels
at amortised cost
Long-term deposits 1 32,148 27,025
Trade debts 14 175,043 234, 251
Current maturity of long term loans 15 3,495 2,753
Other receivables 16 2229 2,486
Short-term investments - TDRs and Treasury bills 17 464,359 696,000
Cash and bank balances 18 128,497 178,786
803,772 1,101,301
at fair value through profit or loss
Short-term investments - mutual fund units 17 884,015 1,023,595
1,887,787 212489
Financlal liabllities at amortised cost
Lease liabilities 21 310,080 281,445
Long-term financing 20 223,825 149,670
Trade and other payables 24 2.153,715 1,988 422
Unclaimed dividend 25 3279 3,281
Unpaid dividend 25 2942 1,130
- 2,693.841 2423948
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33, CHANGES IN LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

2022
Long-term
Unclaimed ko
unpaid Lease deferred
dividend  jiabilities  income
nnnnn (Rupees in 000} mree—
Balance at beginning of the year 4,411 281,445 200,955
Changes from financing cash flows = )
Dividend paid during the year (297,340) - -1
Financing obtained during the year - - 91,418

Payments made during the year (119,527) (9,624 :

—ZoTaa0)  (119527) 81,79
Other changes

Dividend declared during the year 299,150 - -
Remeasurement of lease liabilities - 3,432 -
Unwinding of finance cost during the year - 29,352 15,748 |
Amortization of deferred income - - (2,185)
Additions during the year . 148,044 -
Disposals during the year - (32,666) A
299,150 148,162 13,553
Balance at end of the year 6,221 310,080 296,302
e
Long-term
. 5
Unclaimed! ,;‘Sﬂﬁfﬁ
unpaid Lease deferred
dividend liabilities income
remeeeees [RUPSES i D00} —eeeeeee
Balance at beginning of the year 4 456 288,681 268,100
Changes from financing cash flows :
Dividend paid during the year (45) - -
Financing obtained during the year - - 200,321/

(104,390)| (269,100)|

Payments made during the year -
(45) (104 390) (68,

Other changes _ B
Dividend declared during the year | -1

Remeasurement of lease liabilities - {9,467) -
Unwinding of finance cost during the year - 34 896 634
Additions during the year - 70725] -

- 96,154 634

Balance at end of the year 4411 281,445 200,955
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40. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

40.1 Related parties of the Company comprise of associated companies, staff retirement benefits, direc-
tors and key management personnel. All the transactions with related parties are entered into at
agreed terms as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Balances outstanding with
related parties have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. Details of
transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed else-
where in these financial statements, are az follows:

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

Associated companies / other related parties -——— (Rupees in "000) ——
Sales 24 491 16,139
Purchases of goods, matenal and services 170,596 126,111
Insurance premium 26,250 27,140
Insurance claims received 1,370 21,198
Lease rentals and service charges paid 17,676 15 796
Donation paid 3,845 -
Key management personnel
Remuneration and other benefits of
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary 41,333 19,156
Staff retirement benefits
Confribution to provident fund 30,245 24,725

40.2 Following are the details of related parties and associated companies with whom the Company had
enterad into tfransactions or has arangemeant / agreament in place.

Company Name Basis of relationship Aggregate % of
shareholding in
the Company

Habib Insurance Company Limited Comman Directorship 0.35

Indus Motor Company Limited Commeon Directorship MIA

Muhammad Ali Habib Weifare Trust Common Directorship MIA,

Thal Limited Common Directorship 1.3

Habib Meltro Pakistan (Private) Limited  Common Directorship MNIA

Razaque Steels (Private) Limited Common Directorship MIA

Shabbir tiles and ceramics limited -

Employees’ Provident Fund Staff retirement benefits MIA,
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41.

41.1

41.2

41.3

42

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the year are as follows:

2022 2021
Chief Executives  Chaef Executives
Executiva Execufive
Officer Cifficer
e Rupees in ‘000

Managerial remuneration 18,274 61,054 16,145 58,372
Housing and utilities 12,963 49,996 12,863 §1.263
Leave fare azsistance, leave encazhment and bonus 35,385 25,964 25,888 18.748
Reimbursement of medical expensas 1,828 5671 1,614 5.050
Retirement benefits 1,705 5109 1,508 4 285
70,159 147 704 5B 117 135,728
MNumber of persons 1 33 1 23

In addition, the Chief Executive Officer and certain execulives are provided with free use of the
Company maintained cars.

Fee amounting to Rs. 2.3 million (2021: Rs. 0.675 million) was paid to 4 non-executive (2021: 3
non-executive directors) of the Company for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and its
committee during the year.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair
value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowil-
edgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Fair value hierarchy

The different levels to analyse financial assets carried at fair value have been defined as follows:
Level 1; Quoted market price

Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observable); and

Level 3: Valuation techniques (non-market observables)

As of the statement of financial position date, the Company does not have any financial assets
carried at fair value that required categorization in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 except short-term
investment in mutual fund units which is categornzed as Level 1 financial assefs.

PRODUCTION CAPACITY

During the year, the tile production attained was 11.90 million sq. meters (2021: 12.37 million sq.

meters) against annual manufacturing capacity of 14.04 million sq. meters (2021: 14.04 millien sq.
meters).
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44.

45.

46.

47.
47.1
47.2

48.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 13, 2022 proposed final cash dividend of
Rs. 0.75 per share (2021: Rs. 1.25 per share) for the year ended 30 June 2022 amounting to Rs,
179.490 million (2021: Rs. 299.150 million) for approval of the members at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on October 20, 2022.

June 30, June 30,
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2022 2021
Total number of employees as at year end 745 742
Average number of employees during the year 746 a0

OPERATING SEGMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

All sales of the Company comprise of sale of wall tiles, floor tiles and other building material
products.

All non-current assets of the Company at the end of the current and preceding year were located in
Pakistan,

Sales to five major customers of the Company are around 15% of the Company’s total sales during
the year (2021: 15%).

GEMERAL
Figures have bean rounded off 1o the nearest thousands unless otherwise stated.

Certain prior year's figures have been reclassified for better presentation, wherever necessary,
However, there are no material reclassifications o report.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 13, 2022 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
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Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held Percentage # Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab Total Shares Held
DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSE (S) AND CHILDREN

928 1 to 100 25,117

Rafiq M. Habib 1 4,162,522 1.74 804 101 to 500 249,117

Syed Masood Abbas Jaffery 1 43,000 0.02 473 501 to 1000 394,497

Muhammad Salman Burney 1 1,000 0.00 780 1001 to 5000 1,976,182

Abdul Hai Mehmood Bhai Mian 1 663,594 0.28 222 5001 to 10000 1,722,383

Feroze Jehangir Cawas;ji 1 1,000 0.00 80 10001 to 15000 1,018,859

Farhana Mowjee Khan 1 1 ,000 0.00 52 15001 o 20000 953,209

Imran Ali Habib 1 1,000 0.00 41 20001 to 25000 939,801
Jamila Rafi 1 1,377,752 05 ’

Rukhsana Bibi 1 781,774 0.32 22 25001 o 80000 606,787

14 30001 to 35000 462,337

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES 9 35001 to 40000 348,324

11 40001 to 45000 468,938

Thal Limited 1 3,121,549 1.30 18 45001 to 50000 878,210

8 50001 to 55000 421,805

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS 5 823,883 0.34 8 55001 to 60000 463,928

4 60001 to 65000 257,500

INSURANCE COMPANIES 4 1,206,210 0.50 4 65001 o 20000 £79.912

2 70001 to 75000 147,000

MODARABAS AND MUTUAL FUNDS 40 43,352,859 18.11 8 75001 0 80000 622,441

5 80001 to 85000 414,619

3 85001 to 90000 268,500

GENERAL PUBLIC 5 90001 to 95000 461,420

15 95001 to 100000 1,490,040

a. Local 3439 41,867,311 17.49 5 100001 to 105000 517,681

b. Foreign 53 213,892 0.09 2 105001 to 110000 215,500

2 110001 to 115000 223,000

FOREIGN COMPANIES 21 131,167,292 54.81 3 115001 o 120000 357 273

OTHERS 68 10,534,837 4.40 1 120001 to 125000 122,000

2 130001 to 135000 268,000

Totals 3640 239,320,475 100.00 3 135001 to 140000 416,932

1 145001 to 150000 150,000

2 150001 to 155000 306,500

1 160001 to 165000 160,816

Share holders holding 5% or more Shares Held Percentage 1 13(5)881 IZ 1;2888 zgjgg?

3 175001 to 180000 532,742

ROBERT FINANCE CORPORATION 72,102,223 30.13 4 180001 to 185000 728,528

AG AYLESBURY INTERNATIONAL LTD 16,009,983 6.69 1 185001 to 190000 186,250

ASAD LIMITED 12,840,786 5.37 2 190001 to 195000 382,500

MUSTAFA LIMITED 12,418,386 5.19 4 195001 to 200000 797,743

1 200001 to 205000 204,500

1 210001 to 215000 213,000

1 220001 to 225000 222,000

1 235001 to 240000 240,000

2 240001 to 245000 485,216

1 250001 to 255000 251,447

1 260001 to 265000 263,500

1 265001 to 270000 265,900

1 285001 to 290000 287,239

1 290001 to 295000 292,618

3 295001 to 300000 900,000

1 320001 to 325000 320,763
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

as at June 30, 2022

# Of Shareholders
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Shareholdings'Slab

325001
335001
340001
345001
365001
430001
440001
450001
455001
500001
520001
585001
595001
655001
660001
705001
715001
735001
745001
750001
775001
780001
805001
890001
960001
965001
995001
1120001
1135001
1325001
1375001
1415001
1555001
1675001
1915001
2090001
2140001
2290001
2310001
2355001
2440001
2505001
2570001
2775001
2985001
3075001
3120001
3290001
3450001
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Total Shares Held

330000
340000
345000
350000
370000
435000
445000
455000
460000
505000
525000
590000
600000
660000
665000
710000
720000
740000
750000
755000
780000
785000
810000
895000
965000
970000
1000000
1125000
1140000
1330000
1380000
1420000
1560000
1680000
1920000
2095000
2145000
2295000
2315000
2360000
2445000
2510000
2575000
2780000
2990000
3080000
3125000
3295000
3455000

329,137
339,433
343,500
350,000
734,000
435,000
441,558
455,000
460,000
500,375
522,500
589,691
600,000
1,316,660
663,594
708,884
718,000
1,477,382
750,000
755,000
776,000
1,565,263
807,500
892,500
1,925,500
966,000
1,000,000
1,122,631
1,139,322
1,326,500
1,377,752
1,416,500
1,556,500
1,675,695
1,917,500
2,095,000
2,142,000
2,294,000
2,311,168
2,358,762
2,440,152
2,509,602
2,574,660
2,775,015
11,953,331
3,079,468
3,121,549
3,295,000
10,364,667

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

as at June 30, 2022

# Of Shareholders

Shareholdings'Slab
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Total Shares Held

1 3460001 to 3465000 3,460,497
1 3465001 to 3470000 3,469,471
1 3660001 to 3665000 3,663,993
1 3955001 to 3960000 3,957,422
1 4160001 to 4165000 4,162,522
1 4170001 to 4175000 4,174,641
1 5870001 to 5875000 5,871,000
1 6205001 to 6210000 6,207,788
1 7030001 to 7035000 7,030,157
1 10615001 to 10620000 10,619,000
1 16005001 to 16010000 16,009,983
1 60895001 to 60900000 60,897,425
3640 239,320,475
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PROXY FORM

I/'We of

being a member(s) of SHABBIR TILES AND CERAMICS LIMITED and a holder of

ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No.

or CDC Participant ID No. Account No.

hereby appoint of

who is also member of SHABBIR TILES AND CERAMICS LIMITED Vide Folio No.
or CDC Participant ID No. Account No.

or failing him/her of

who is also member of SHABBIR TILES AND CERAMICS LIMITED vide Folio No.
or CDC Participant ID No. Account No.

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual

General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 20" day of October 2022, and at any adjournment

thereof.
As witness my / our hand / seal this day of 2022
signed by the said
Witness Witness
(Signature) (Signature)

Name Name
Address Address
CNIC No. CNIC No.

Please affix

Rs. 5/-

Revenue

Stamp

SIGNATURE OF MEMBER(S)

NOTES:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed must be received at the Registered Office of the Company,
15" Milestone, National Highway, Landhi, Karachi, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding
the Annual General Meeting.

P.T.O.
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2. No person shall act as proxy unless he / she himself / herself is a member of the Company. Except that
a corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a
member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS / CORPORATE ENTITIES
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

a) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

b) Attested copy of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners shall be furnished with the proxy form.
c) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

d) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.
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